
 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at the 

meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the public 
except by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter during a 

public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda.  Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them 

to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required to contact the 
ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable 

accommodations for those persons. 

 

Page 1 of 1 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Agenda 

Friday, September 4, 2020 ◊ 9:00 AM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 

2. Approval of Agenda 

3. Invocation 

4. Pledge of Allegiance (BW) 

5. Special Presentation - Youth Services - Dr. Ulrica Jones, Eventual Success, LLC 

 

Mill Rate Public Hearing 
6. Presentation of Proposed 2020 Mill Rate (staff-Finance) 

7. Comments from the Public 

8. Comments from Commissioners and/or Staff 

 

Regular Business Meeting 
9. Public Comments 

10. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - August 18, 2020 Public Hearings and Regular Meeting (staff-CC) 

b. Approval of Minutes - August 28, 2020 Called Meeting (staff-CC) 

11. Declaration of Road Abandonment of a portion of Little-Minton Road and authorization for Chairman to 

sign Resolution and Affidavit (staff-CC) 

12. Authorization for staff to schedule a Public Hearing for a Name Change to a county road (BW) 

13. Appointment of 2020 Voting Delegate for the ACCG Business Session of the Legislative Leadership 

Conference (BS) 

14. Ratification of the Board of Education Mill Rate and Authorization for Chairman to sign Tax Levy 

Resolution (staff-Finance) 

15. Authorization for Chairman to sign Resolution setting 2020 Mill Rate for Incorporated County 

Maintenance and Operation (staff-Finance) 

16. Authorization for Chairman to sign Resolution setting 2020 Mill Rate for Unincorporated County 

Maintenance and Operation (staff-Finance) 

17. Authorization for Chairman to sign Resolution setting 2020 Mill Rate for Special Service District (staff-

Finance) 

 

Reports/Announcements 
18. County Manager Report 

19. County Attorney Report 

20. Commissioner Announcements 

 

Closing 
21. Adjournment 

1



File Attachments for Item:

5. Special Presentation - Youth Services - Dr. Ulrica Jones, Eventual Success, LLC

2



3



4



5



6



File Attachments for Item:

10. Consent Agenda

a. Approval of Minutes - August 18, 2020 Public Hearings and Regular Meeting (staff-CC)

b. Approval of Minutes - August 28, 2020 Called Meeting (staff-CC)

7



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 1 of 6                                                                                     Approved 

August 18, 2020                                                                                                                                                      _______________ 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Minutes 

Tuesday, August 18, 2020 ◊ 6:30 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

The Putnam County Board of Commissioners met on Tuesday, August 18, 2020 at 

approximately 6:30 PM in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, 

Room 203, Eatonton, Georgia. 

 

PRESENT  

Chairman Billy Webster 

Commissioner Kelvin Irvin 

Commissioner Daniel Brown 

Commissioner Bill Sharp 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

County Attorney Adam Nelson 

County Manager Paul Van Haute 

County Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

 

 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 

Chairman Webster called the meeting to order at approximately 6:30 p.m. 

(Copy of agenda made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

2. Approval of Agenda 

Motion to approve the agenda. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 
 

3. Invocation 

Rev. Marion Clark gave the invocation. 

 

4. Pledge of Allegiance (BS) 

Commissioner Sharp led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

 

 

 

8



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 2 of 6                                                                                     Approved 

August 18, 2020                                                                                                                                                      _______________ 

Zoning Public Hearing 

Chairman Webster opened the Zoning Public Hearing at approximately 6:33 p.m. 

 
5. Request by Danny Copelan to rezone 5.00 acres at 931 Pea Ridge Road from AG-2 to C-1 

[Map 092, Parcel 017001001, District 2] (staff-P&D) 

Danny Copelan spoke in support of this request.  The following individuals spoke against this 

item: Scott Martin, Peggy Fuller, Jon King, Heidi King. 

 

Staff recommendation was for approval to rezone 5.00 acres at 931 Pea Ridge Road [Map 092, 

Parcel 017001001, District 2] from AG-2 to C-1 with the following condition: (1) The developer 

shall construct a deceleration lane in accordance with the Georgia Department of Transportation 

Regulations for Driveway & Encroachment Control to service the entrance on Pea Ridge Road of 

the development.  Additional right-of-way to accommodate the deceleration lane and a ten-foot 

shoulder shall be dedicated by the developer to the county. 

 

Motion to approve the request by Danny Copelan to rezone 5.00 acres at 931 Pea Ridge 

Road from AG-2 to C-1 [Map 092, Parcel 017001001] with the following condition: (1) The 

developer shall construct a deceleration lane in accordance with the Georgia Department of 

Transportation Regulations for Driveway & Encroachment Control to service the entrance 

on Pea Ridge Road of the development.  Additional right-of-way to accommodate the 

deceleration lane and a ten-foot shoulder shall be dedicated by the developer to the county. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Sharp 

Voting Nay: Chairman Webster, Commissioner Brown 

Motion denied (Code of Ordinances-Sec. 2-33.-Voting majority.  Passage of a motion shall 

require the affirmative vote of a majority of commissioners then in office.) 

 

6. Request by Mark Smith to rezone 0.46 acres at 147 Collis Marina Road from RM-2 to RM-2 

[Map 104B, Parcel 012, District 3] (staff-P&D) 

Attorney Jay Dell spoke in support of this request on behalf of Mark Smith.  The following 

spoke against this item: Attorney Bill Berryman, John Culpepper, Gerald Wright, Darlyne 

Wright, Ron Carter, Pete Wardlaw, Jeremy Hobbs. 

 

Staff recommendation was for approval of the proposed rezoning at 147 Collis Marina Road 

[Map 104B, Parcel 012, District 3] from RM-2 to RM-2, subject to the following conditions: (1) 

This parcel must be combined with the adjacent parcel: Map 104B, Parcel 011, and cannot be 

used or sold as standalone parcels, (2) A 15-foot wide landscape buffer shall be established 

adjacent to all single-family residential zoned property, (3) Must improve any existing easement 

that services Map 104B Parcel 013 & Map 104B Parcel 014 with at least a 20-foot paved bed, (4) 

Vehicles shall not be parked on the easement at any time, (5) This rezoning shall be conditioned 

upon the resurveying and the recordation of the plats, as stated in Section 66-165(e)(3) of the 

Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 

 

Motion to approve the request by Mark Smith to rezone 0.46 acres at 147 Collis Marina 

Road from RM-2 to RM-2 [Map 104B, Parcel 012] with the following conditions: (1) This 

parcel must be combined with the adjacent parcel: Map 104B, Parcel 011, and cannot be 

9



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 3 of 6                                                                                     Approved 

August 18, 2020                                                                                                                                                      _______________ 

used or sold as standalone parcels, (2) A 15-foot wide landscape buffer shall be established 

adjacent to all single-family residential zoned property, (3) Must improve any existing 

easement that services Map 104B Parcel 013 & Map 104B Parcel 014 with at least a 20-foot 

paved bed, (4) Vehicles shall not be parked on the easement at any time, (5) This rezoning 

shall be conditioned upon the resurveying and the recordation of the plats, as stated in 

Section 66-165(e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances.  

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Brown. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Sharp 

Voting Nay: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown 

 

7. Request by Rick McAllister, agent for Farmers and Merchants Bank, to rezone 171.23 acres 

on Scott Road from R-1 to C-3 [Map 102, Parcel 002, District 3] (staff-P&D) 

Rick McAllister and Howard McMicael spoke in support of this request.  The following spoke 

against this item: Beth Colie, Don Hill. 

 

Staff recommendation was for approval of the proposed to rezone 171.23 acres on Scott Road 

from R-1 to C-3. [Map 102, Parcel 002, District 3] with the following conditions: (1) The 

developer shall construct a deceleration lane and turn lane in accordance with the Georgia 

Department of Transportation Regulations for Driveway & Encroachment Control to service the 

main entrance on Scott Road to the residential portion of the development. Additional right-of-

way to accommodate the deceleration lane and a ten-foot shoulder shall be dedicated by the 

developer to the county. It shall be completed by the developer prior to the completion of phase 

one, and (2) The developer shall direct construction traffic through the entrance located at 

Sammons Parkway or the current ingress and egress point servicing the Putnam County 

Convenience Center, located approximately 672 feet from the intersection of Scott Road and 

Harmony Road. Subject to this condition, the Planning & Development Director may authorize, 

in writing, construction traffic along Scott Road on an as necessary basis. The intention of this 

condition is to minimize construction traffic along Scott Road. 

 

Motion to approve the request by Rick McAllister, agent for Farmers and Merchants 

Bank, to rezone 171.23 acres on Scott Road from R-1 to C-3 [Map 102, Parcel 002] with the 

following conditions: (1) The developer shall construct a deceleration lane and turn lane 

in accordance with the Georgia Department of Transportation Regulations for Driveway & 

Encroachment Control to service the main entrance on Scott Road to the residential 

portion of the development. Additional right-of-way to accommodate the deceleration lane 

and a ten-foot shoulder shall be dedicated by the developer to the county. It shall be 

completed by the developer prior to the completion of phase one, and (2) The developer 

shall direct construction traffic through the entrance located at Sammons Parkway or the 

current ingress and egress point servicing the Putnam County Convenience Center, located 

approximately 672 feet from the intersection of Scott Road and Harmony Road. Subject to 

this condition, the Planning & Development Director may authorize, in writing, 

construction traffic along Scott Road on an as necessary basis. The intention of this 

condition is to minimize construction traffic along Scott Road. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 
 

10



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 4 of 6                                                                                     Approved 

August 18, 2020                                                                                                                                                      _______________ 

8. Request by Putnam County Board of Commissioners to rezone .60 acres at 149 Collis Marina 

Road from RM-2 to R-1 [Map 104B, Parcel 013, District 3] (staff-P&D) 

John Culpepper, Gerald Wright, and Ron Carter spoke in support of this request.  No one spoke 

against this item. 

 

Staff recommendation was for approval to rezone .60 acres at 149 Collis Marina Road [Map 

104B, Parcel 013, District 3] from RM-2 to R-1. 

 

Motion to approve the request by Putnam County Board of Commissioners to rezone .60 

acres at 149 Collis Marina Road from RM-2 to R-1 [Map 104B, Parcel 013]. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 
 

9. Request by Putnam County Board of Commissioners to rezone .54 acres at 151 Collis Marina 

Road from RM-2 to R-1 [Map 104B, Parcel 014, District 3] (staff-P&D) 

Pete Wardlaw spoke in support of this request.  No one spoke against this item. 

 

Staff recommendation was for approval to rezone .54 acres at 151 Collis Marina Road [Map 

104B, Parcel 014, District 3] from RM-2 to R-1. 

 

Motion to approve the request by Putnam County Board of Commissioners to rezone .54 

acres at 151 Collis Marina Road from RM-2 to R-1 [Map 104B, Parcel 014]. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 

 

The Zoning Public Hearing closed at approximately 8:52 p.m. 

 

 

Meeting recessed at approximately 8:52 p.m. 

Meeting reconvened at approximately 9:00 p.m. 

 

 

Budget Public Hearing 
10. Presentation of Proposed FY21 Budget (staff-CM & Finance) 

County Manager Van Haute gave a PowerPoint presentation on the budget and mill rate. 

(Copy of presentation made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to 

__________.) 

 

11. Comments from Commissioners and/or Staff 

Board members thanked staff and all employees for all their hard work. 

 

12. Comments from the Public 

None 

 

 

 

11



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 5 of 6                                                                                     Approved 

August 18, 2020                                                                                                                                                      _______________ 

Regular Business Meeting 
13. Public Comments 

None 

 

14. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - August 7, 2020 Public Hearings & Regular Meeting (staff-CC) 

b. Approval of Minutes - August 7, 2020 Executive Session (staff-CC) 

c. Approval of Minutes - August 7, 2020 Budget Work Session (staff-CC) 

d. Authorization for Chairman to sign ACCG IRMA Safety Discount Verification Form 

(staff-HR) 

e. Authorization for Chairman to sign ACCG GSWCF Safety Discount Verification Form 

(staff-HR) 

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 

Motion made by Commissioner Irvin, Seconded by Commissioner Brown. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 

(Copy of documents made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to 

__________.) 

 

15. Authorization for Chairman to sign Final Subdivision Plat for Eagles Rest Cottages (staff-

P&D) 

Rick McAllister spoke in support of this request.  He specifically thanked Lisa Jackson and the 

Planning & Development Department and Anthony Frazier from Public Works for being so great 

to work with. 

Motion to authorize the Chairman to sign the Final Subdivision Plat for Eagles Rest 

Cottages. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 

(Copy of plat made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to __________.) 

 

16. Approval of Certification of Road Abandonment of a portion of Little-Minton Road (staff-

CC) 

Motion to approve the Certification of Road Abandonment of a portion of Little-Minton 

Road. 

Motion made by Commissioner Brown, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 

(Copy of certification made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to 

__________.) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 6 of 6                                                                                     Approved 

August 18, 2020                                                                                                                                                      _______________ 

17. Authorization for staff to schedule a Public Hearing for proposed changes to the Putnam 

County Code of Ordinances - Chapter 66 (Zoning) (staff-CA) 

County Attorney Nelson reviewed the proposed changes to Chapter 66. 

Motion to authorize staff to schedule a Public Hearing for proposed changes to the Putnam 

County Code of Ordinances - Chapter 66 (Zoning). 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 

(Copy of proposed changes made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to 

__________.) 

 

Reports/Announcements 
18. County Manager Report 

No report. 

 

19. County Attorney Report 

No report. 

 

20. Commissioner Announcements 

Commissioner Irvin: none 

 

Commissioner Brown: urged everyone to fill out their census 

 

Commissioner Sharp: urged everyone to fill out their census 

 

Chairman Webster: urged everyone to fill out their census and advised that September 30, 2020 

is the last day. 

 

Closing 
21. Adjournment 

Motion to adjourn the meeting. 

Motion made by Commissioner Irvin, Seconded by Commissioner Brown. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 

 

 

Meeting adjourned at approximately 9:39 p.m. 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Lynn Butterworth      Billy Webster 

County Clerk       Chairman 

13



DRAFT Called Meeting Minutes                                   Page 1 of 2                                                                                     Approved 

August 28, 2020                                                                                                                                                               ___________ 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Called Meeting 

Minutes 

Friday, August 28, 2020 ◊ 9:00 AM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

The Putnam County Board of Commissioners met on Friday, August 28, 2020 at approximately 

9:00 AM in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, 

Eatonton, Georgia. 

 

PRESENT  

Chairman Billy Webster 

Commissioner Kelvin Irvin 

Commissioner Daniel Brown 

Commissioner Bill Sharp 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

County Manager Paul Van Haute 

County Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

Finance Director Linda Cook 

 

 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 

Chairman Webster called the meeting to order at approximately 9:02 a.m. 

(Copy of agenda made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

2. Pledge of Allegiance (BS) 

Commissioner Sharp led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Called Meeting 
3. Approval of FY21 Budget and Authorization for Chairman to sign 2021 Budget Resolution 

(staff-Finance) 

Motion to approve the FY21 Budget and authorize the Chairman to sign the 2021 Budget 

Resolution. 

Motion made by Commissioner Irvin, Seconded by Commissioner Sharp. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 

(Copy of resolution made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to 

__________.) 

 

14



DRAFT Called Meeting Minutes                                   Page 2 of 2                                                                                     Approved 

August 28, 2020                                                                                                                                                               ___________ 

4. Approval of Revised Putnam County Financial Policy (staff-Finance) 

Finance Director Cook explained the proposed changes.  Chairman Webster discussed some 

additional suggested changes. 

Motion to approve the Revised Putnam County Financial Policy as discussed.  

Motion made by Commissioner Irvin, Seconded by Commissioner Brown. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 

(Copy of policy made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to __________.) 

 

Closing 

5.   Other Business 

Commissioner Brown discussed Broadband Internet services. 

 

County Manager Van Haute and Public Information Officer McMullen gave a report on the 

increased Facebook statistics. 

 

Commissioner Irvin verified that the mill rate would be set at the regular BOC meeting next 

Friday, September 4, 2020.  He also inquired about the parking lot improvements at the 

Administration Building.  County Manager Van Haute advised that is part of the BER relocation 

project and it is out for bid. 

 

County Manager Van Haute also advised that Dance Road has been paved and temporarily 

striped. 

 

Commissioner Sharp advised that he has received a lot of thanks for the new right turn lane at 

Old Phoenix Road and Highway 44. 

 

Chairman Webster advised that the Tax Commissioner's office will try to reopen on Monday, 

August 31, 2020, but they have had more positive COVID tests.  He also advised that the library 

is closed again due to positive COVID tests. 

 

Commissioner Sharp advised that a special computer has been installed at Shopper's Pharmacy 

for people needing to complete their Census.  A second location is being studied at possibly City 

Hall or the Chamber of Commerce. 

 

6. Adjournment 

Motion to adjourn the meeting. 

Motion made by Commissioner Irvin, Seconded by Commissioner Sharp. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 

 

 

Meeting adjourned at approximately 9:51 a.m. 

 

ATTEST: 

 

Lynn Butterworth      Billy Webster 

County Clerk       Chairman 

15



File Attachments for Item:

11. Declaration of Road Abandonment of a portion of Little-Minton Road and authorization for 

Chairman to sign Resolution and Affidavit (staff-CC)

16



ROAD ABANDONMENT CHECKLIST 

 
Name of Road ___________________________________________ 
 

When there is a request to abandon a county road the following steps must be followed: 

 

1. The Board of Commissioners must approve beginning the process at a regular board meeting. 

 

Completed   Date ____________________________ 

 

2. A “Notice of Intent to Abandon A County Road” must be published in the legal organ of the 

county for two weeks. 

 

Completed   Dates ____________________________ 

 

3. Post signs at each end of the road proposed to be abandoned. 

 

Completed   Date ____________________________ 

 

4. Public hearing is held. 

 

Completed   Date ____________________________ 

 

5. Board of Commissioners approves Certification of Road Abandonment at a regular board 

meeting.  

 

Completed   Date ____________________________ 

 

a.  A copy of the certification and plat is mailed to the property owner(s). 

 

Completed   Date ____________________________ 

 

b.  A copy of the certification and plat is published in the county’s legal organ for two 

weeks. 

 

Completed   Dates ____________________________ 

 

6. Board of Commissioners declares road abandoned and authorizes Chairman to sign affidavit 

of abandonment at a regular board meeting. 

 

Completed   Date ____________________________ 

 

a.  County attorney prepares an affidavit of abandonment, to be executed by the 

Chairman, and files the same with the Putnam County Superior Court. 

 

Completed   Date ____________________________ 

Little-Minton Road (portion)

7-10-2020

7-23-2020 & 7-30-2020

7-29-2020

8-7-2020

8-18-2020

8-19-2020

8-27-2020 & 9-3-2020

9-4-2020

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

17



 

{Doc: 01857411.DOC} 

 RESOLUTION NO. 20200904 

 

A RESOLUTION TO DECLARE AND CERTIFY ABANDONED A PORTION OF 

LITTLE-MINTON ROAD; TO AUTHORIZE RECORDATION OF THIS RESOLUTION 

AND ACCOMPANYING EXHIBIT(S) IN THE COUNTY MINUTES; TO AUTHORIZE 

THE COUNTY ATTORNEY TO PREPARE DOCUMENTS FOR THE DISPOSAL OF SAID 

PROPERTY; TO AUTHORIZE DELETION OF SAID PROPERTY FROM ANY OFFICIAL 

RECORDS REFLECTING THE CURRENT COUNTY ROAD SYSTEM; TO REPEAL 

INCONSISTENT PROVISIONS; TO PROVIDE FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR 

OTHER PURPOSES. 

 

 WHEREAS, Putnam County (the "County") is vested with the power and responsibility 

under state law to protect the health, safety, and welfare of its residents, to promote economic 

development, provide for the transportation needs of the public, and ensure that natural areas be 

maintained in a manner designed to maintain a desirable community; and 

 

WHEREAS, the County has maintained as part of the County road system a portion of right 

of way known as Little-Minton Road, said right of way being more particularly described in Exhibit 

“A” which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference (the "Property"); and 

 

WHEREAS, the County has determined that no substantial public purpose would be served 

by maintaining the Property as public right-of-way and it is in the public interest to relieve the 

County from the charge of maintaining this portion of roadway which is no longer useful, convenient 

or necessary for public travel, and its removal from the County road system is otherwise in the best 

public interest; and 

 

WHEREAS, abandoning this portion of roadway does not isolate or leave landlocked any 

property owner; and 

 

WHEREAS, the County notified all adjacent landowners of the County’s intent to abandon 

the Property; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Putnam County Board of Commissioners have held a hearing regarding the 

abandonment of the Property at a regularly scheduled meeting; and 

 

WHEREAS, the County determined that the Property was not located in an Urban 

Redevelopment Area as that term is defined in O.C.G.A. § 36-61-10; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Putnam County Board of Commissioners, in the exercise of their sound 

judgment and discretion, after giving thorough consideration to all the implications involved, and 

keeping in mind the public interest and welfare of the citizens of the County, have determined that 

abandoning the Property would be advantageous to and would best benefit the citizens of the County; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the County now wishes to declare the Property abandoned; to direct the County 

18



 

{Doc: 01857411.DOC} 

Clerk to record this Resolution and accompanying exhibit(s) in the County’s minutes; to authorize 

the County Attorney to proceed with the disposal of the Property in accordance with O.C.G.A. § 32-

7-4; and to authorize the County Clerk to remove all references to the Property from any County 

records reflecting the County’s road system. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE PUTNAM COUNTY 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS: 

 

1. No Public Purpose Certification.  The Putnam County Board of Commissioners 

hereby adopts the preamble as if fully set forth herein and hereby certifies that no substantial public 

purpose will be served by maintaining the Property as public right-of-way. It is in the public interest 

to relieve the County from the charge of maintaining this portion of roadway which is no longer 

useful, convenient or necessary for public travel, and its removal from the County road system is 

otherwise in the best public interest. Furthermore, abandoning this portion of roadway does not 

isolate or leave landlocked any property owner.  

 

2. Declaration That Property Is Abandoned.  The County hereby declares the 

Property to be formally abandoned.  The rights of the public in and to the Property as a public road 

shall cease immediately. 

 

3. Disposal of Abandoned Property.   The County Attorney is authorized to arrange for 

the disposal of the Property in accordance with O.C.G.A.§ 32-7-4 with final disposal subject to the 

approval of the Putnam County Board of Commissioners. 

 

4. Recordation.  The County Clerk is hereby directed to record this Resolution, 

declaration, certification, and accompanying exhibit(s), including a plat or sketch of the Property, in 

the official minutes of the County. 

 

5. Deletion From County Records.  The County Clerk is hereby authorized to delete all 

references to the Property as County property from County records reflecting the current County road 

system. 

 

6. Severability.  To the extent any portion of this Resolution is declared to be invalid, 

unenforceable, or nonbinding, that shall not affect the remaining portions of this Resolution. 

 

7. Repeal of Conflicting Provisions.  All County resolutions are hereby repealed to the 

extent they are inconsistent with this Resolution. 

 

8. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately. 

 

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW] 

19



 

{Doc: 01857411.DOC} 

THIS RESOLUTION adopted this 4th day of September 2020. 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Chairman 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________ 

County Clerk 

(seal) 

20



 

{Doc: 01857411.DOC} 

EXHIBIT "A" 

 

Plat of Right-of-Way to be Abandoned 

21



EXHIBIT A
22



 
PLEASE RECORD & RETURN TO:   

LYNN BUTTERWORTH 

PUTNAM COUNTY CLERK 

117 PUTNAM DRIVE, SUITE A 

EATONTON, GA  31024             

 

STATE OF GEORGIA   )    

      ) AFFIDAVIT OF ABANDONMENT  

COUNTY OF PUTNAM   )   

 

RE:    Little-Minton Road 

 

 The undersigned Deponent, being duly sworn, deposes and says as follows: 

 

 1. That he is the Chairman of the Board of Commissioners of Putnam County and has 

the authority, pursuant to Georgia law, to execute documents on behalf of Putnam County, 

Georgia. 

 

 2. That pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 32-7-2, a public hearing, having being properly 

noticed, was held on August 7, 2020 to consider the abandonment of a portion of Little-Minton 

Road. 

 

3. That pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 32-7-2, on August 18, 2020 the Putnam County Board 

of Commissioners determined the portion of Little-Minton Road described on “Exhibit A” 

attached hereto had ceased to be used by the public to the extent that no substantial public purpose 

is served by it. 

 

4. That the portion of the road or roads herein described have been abandoned by 

resolution of the Putnam County Board of Commissioners and shall no longer be part of the county 

road system and the rights of the public in and to the portion of the roads as public roads have 

ceased. 

 

 

Sworn to and subscribed before me         

this ______day of _________, 2020.   Billy Webster, Deponent 

Chairman, Putnam County  

Board of Commissioners 

 

____________________________ 

 Notary Public 

23



File Attachments for Item:

12. Authorization for staff to schedule a Public Hearing for a Name Change to a county road (BW)

24



PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
117 Putnam Drive, Suite A Tel: 706-485- Fax: 706-923-2345 

Road Name Change Application 

Date of Request:       

Subdivision Name:               

Applicant/Authorized Agent:              

            

Mailing Address:               

Contact Number(s):               

Current Road Name:               

Proposed Road Name:              

Road length in Miles: __________ ( Paved or Unpaved Private Road or County/City Road) 
**For recording purposes, please provide Survey Plat of Road depicting the name change.** 

List road name of roads that intersect with proposed road:
                

                

Reason for Requested Road Name Change:            

                

                

Number of homeowners to be affected by Name Change: ______ *Have they been notified of proposal? ______ 

Number of businesses to be affected by Name Change: ______ *Have they been notified of proposal? _______ 
*Please provide proof of notification 

OFFICE USE ONLY: 

Are there any other conflicting road name or subdivision name located in Putnam County/City of Eatonton that 
would prohibit the proposed name change?      
Was evidence provided to indicate that all or most of the affected home or business owners have been notified 
of proposed name change?      
Recommendation by Planning & Development Director:          
If recommendation is for Denial, reason          
               
                
  
Planning Director Signature:         Date:     

25



File Attachments for Item:

13. Appointment of 2020 Voting Delegate for the ACCG Business Session of the Legislative Leadership 

Conference (BS)

26



 
 

 

                                                              
 
 
 

2020 Voting Delegate Designation Form 
 

2020 BUSINESS SESSION TO ADOPT THE POLICY AGENDA 
VOTING DELEGATE 

 
 
 

 
 

County 
 
 
 

Name 
 
 
 

Title 
 
 
 

Email Address 
 
 
 

Signature of County Chair 
 
 
 

Date 
 
 
 

Please complete the voting delegate form and return it no later 
than Sept. 22, 2020 to tdavis@accg.org as a scanned email 

attachment or fax it to 404.589.7813. 
 
 

NOTE:  If the county does not appoint a voting delegate, then the chair, sole commissioner, CEO or mayor 
of a consolidated government becomes the voting delegate. The chair, CEO or mayor may designate another 

member of the governing authority to vote in his or her stead – but not a county staff member after September 22. 
 

 
 

 

Putnam

Billy Webster

Chairman

bwebster@putnamcountyga.us

08-24-2020

27

mailto:tdavis@accg.org


File Attachments for Item:

14. Ratification of the Board of Education Mill Rate and Authorization for Chairman to sign Tax Levy 

Resolution (staff-Finance)

28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



File Attachments for Item:

15. Authorization for Chairman to sign Resolution setting 2020 Mill Rate for Incorporated County 

Maintenance and Operation (staff-Finance)

40



41



File Attachments for Item:

16. Authorization for Chairman to sign Resolution setting 2020 Mill Rate for Unincorporated County 

Maintenance and Operation (staff-Finance)

42



43



File Attachments for Item:

17. Authorization for Chairman to sign Resolution setting 2020 Mill Rate for Special Service District 

(staff-Finance)

44



45


	Top
	Bottom

